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r v. Navy League of the United States Dod.

O
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
DOLORES MARTINEZ, Case No. 2:13-cv-5533-ODW/(FFMXx)
Plaintiff, ORDER GRANTING DEFENDANT'S
V. MOTION TO DISMISSéZM] AND
DENYING PLAINTIFF’ OTION
NAVY LEAGUE OF THE UNITED TO STRIKE DEFENDANT'S
STATES, PLEADINGS, STRIKE RECAST

N
CSZSMPLAINT AND SERVE

Defendant. PPLEMENTAL PLEADING [26]

.  INTRODUCTION
Plaintiff Dolores Martinez, proceedingro se alleges in her First Amende
Complaint (“FAC”) that she had a “trip arfdll” accident while attending an evel
sponsored by Defendant Navy League of the United StdNasy League”). (FAC
1 7.) This Court has subject-matter galiction based on divetg under 28 U.S.C.
§ 1332(a). On October 21, 2013, Navy geea filed the present Motion to Dismis
Martinez's FAC under Federal Rules of CiiAtocedure 41(b), or in the alternativ
under Rule 12(b)(6). (ECF No. 24.) Suipsently, Martinez filed a Motion to Striki
Defendant’s Pleading, Strike Recast Complaint, and Serve Supplemental Plg
(ECF No. 26.) For the reasons discussed below, the GRUANTS Navy League’s
Motion to Dismiss an®ENIES Martinez’s Motion®

! After carefully considering the papers filed donnection with thes#lotions, the Court deem;
these matters appropriate for decision witharat argument. Fed. R. Civ. P. 78; L.R. 7-15.
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. BACKGROUND

Martinez is appearingro sein this action. Her FAC lists one claim f¢
personal injury against Navy hgue. (FAC 1 17.) She assditat she was injured g
a direct result of Navy League’s negligenin violation of section 39933 of th
California Government Code. (FAC 11 D-2.This claim relates to Martinez’
attendance at a Navy Week event at the Los Angeles Harbor on July 31, 2011
she had planned to take a tour of theSUSbraham Lincoln. (FAC  13.) Martine
alleges that on her way to the aircraftrsa she was forced by the crowd to wa
along the perimeter of the path, against a fefEAC § 15.) She then alleges that g
tripped over a bracket holding up the fence and sustained serious injuries. (FAC

Martinez filed her original Complaint oduly 31, 2013. (ECF No. 1.) O
September 19, 2013,dhCourt granted with leave tomend Navy League’s Motion t
Dismiss Martinez’s original Complaifbr non-opposition. (ECF No. 11.)

On October 3, 2013, Martinez filedheAC, along with a “Request for Revie
of Recast Complaint”. (ECF Nos. 16, 17.The Court then sick as moot hel
“Request for Review,” since it had no ledalndation. (ECF N019.) Navy Leagug

filed the present Motion to Dismiss Mamizis FAC on October 21, 2013. (ECF No.

24.) Martinez subsequently filed her owmotion on November 4, 2013. (ECF N
26.) She asks the Court to (1) “strikefendant’s pleading,” (2) “strike reca
complaint,” and (3) to allow her to “sensupplemental pleadings.” She filed 1
formal opposition to Navy Leaguelotion to Dismiss her FAC.
lll.  LEGAL STANDARD

Dismissal under Rule 12(b)(6) can be luasa “the lack of a cognizable leg
theory” or “the absence of sufficientcta alleged under a cognizable legal theor
Balistreri v. Pacifica Police Dept901 F.2d 696, 699 (9th ICi1990). A complaint
need only satisfy the minimal notice pleaglirequirements of Rule 8(a)(2)—a shq
and plain statement—to survive a motiordtemiss for failure to state a claim und
Rule 12(b)(6). Porter v. Jones319 F.3d 483, 494 (9th Ci2003); Fed. R. Civ
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P. 8(a)(2). For a complaint sufficiently state a claim, it§flactual allegations musi
be enough to raise a right to rélebove the speculative level.Bell Atl. Corp. v.
Twombly 550 U.S. 544, 555 (2007). While specifacts are not necessary so long
the complaint gives the defendant fair netof the claim and the grounds upon wh
the claim rests, a complaint must nekeless “contain sufficient factual matte
accepted as true, to state a claim teefehat is plausible on its face.’Ashcroft v.
Igbal, 556 U.S. 662, 678 (2009).

Igbal's plausibility standard “asks for m® than a sheer possibility that
defendant has acted unlawfullyput does not go so far as to impose a “probab
requirement.” Id. Rule 8 demands more than a cdamd that is merely consister
with a defendant’s liability—dbels and conclusions, or formulaic recitals of
elements of a cause of action do not suffibe. Instead, the cont@int must allege
sufficient underlying facts to provide famotice and enable the defendant to defs
itself effectively. Starr v. Baca 652 F.3d 1202, 1216 (9th Cir. 2011). T
determination whether a complaint satisftee plausibility standard is a “contex
specific task that requires the reviewingud to draw on its judicial experience al
common sense.lgbal, 556 U.S. at 679.

When considering a Rule 12(b)(6) nuotj a court is generally limited to th
pleadings and must construa]l] factual allegations set fdrtin the complaint . . . a
true and . . . in the light mofgvorable to [the plaintiff].” Lee v. City of L.A250 F.3d
668, 688 (9th Cir. 2001). Conclusory gligions, unwarranted deductions of fact, &
unreasonable inferences need not be blindly accepted as true by theSpoeviell v.
Golden State Warriot266 F.3d 979, 988 (9th Cir. 2001Yet, a complaint should b
dismissed only if “it appears pend doubt that the plaintiffan prove no set of facts

supporting plaintiff's claim for relief.Morley v. Walker 175 F.3d 756, 759 (9th Cif.

1999).
In addition, pleadings gbro selitigants are held to less rigid standards th
those drafted by attorneys$iaines v. Kerner4d04 US 519, 520 (1972). Yet, evero
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se pleadings “must meet some minimunre$hold in providing a defendant wit
notice of what it is that it allegedly did wrongBrazil v. U.S. Dep’t. of the Nayg6
F3d 193, 199 (9th Cir. 1995).

V. DISCUSSION

Martinez argues in her Motion that thinlg of her FAC was'inadvertent” and
that the Court should strike She also argues that Navy League’s Motion to Disn
is a “sham” and that the Court should ®allber to re-file her FAC. (ECF No. 26
11 +3.) In the Motion to Dismiss, Navieague argues that the FAC should
dismissed under Rule 41(b) for failure ¢omply with a court order, or in th
alternative, under Rule 12(b)(6) for fakuto state a clen. (ECF No. 24.)

A. Plaintiffs Motion to Strike Defendant’'s Pleadings, Strike Recast

Complaint, and Serve Supplemental Pleadings

While Martinez’s Motion was filed after Navy League’s Motion to Dismiss,
Court finds it appropriate to address her Motfirst. Martinez moves the court to (
strike Defendant’s pleadings, strikeecast complaint, and serve supplemer
pleadings. Id. For the reasons discussed below, the CO&EMNIES the Motion and
instead interprets it as Martinez’s Opposition to the Motion to Dismiss.

First, in Martinez’s Motion, she initiallasks the Court to “strike Defendant
pleadings.” She refers to docket humBdras the “pleading” she argues should
stricken. (ECF No. 26, 1 1.) Dockeumber 24 is Navy League’s Motion 1
Dismiss—not a pleading. Fed R. Civ. P. H{&)). Because Navieague has yet tq
plead anything in this case, Martinez’'s MotionStrike is flatly inapplicable at this
stage of litigation. Therefore, the Coigtunable to grant the requested relief.

Second, Martinez's request that the GQastrike her FAC cannot be granted.

On October 3, 2013, Martinez filed whatestalled a “Request for Review of Recs
Complaint.” (ECF No. 17.)Attached to that request wder FAC. (ECF No. 16.
Martinez asserts that she did not intendsth documents to dded separately, bui
instead wanted her FAC to be an attachnterihe request for review. (ECF No. 2
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5.) She claims she wanted the Courtréwiew her FAC, but instead the tw
documents were detacheddaher FAC was inadvertently filed upon the insistencs
the intake clerk.ld. The request for review was imprapand groundless. The Cou

does not play the role of counsel, andl wot review pleadings before they a

submitted. Further, Martinez's FACrather than a request for reviemeeded to bg
filed on or before October 2013. The docket in this case reflects that Marting

FAC was filed on time, despite her bes$tods to the contrary. (ECF No. 16
Obliging her request for reviewould have rendedeany subsequentljed “official”
FAC untimely. Consequently, the Cournoat grant Martinez’s request that her FA
be stricken.
Martinez also moves the Court to “sesgoplemental pleadings.” Her requg
is unintelligible. She quotes the entire tekRule 15(d), and then inexplicably mak
reference to ongoing setthent negotiations with Ng League. References f
settlement negotiations have no beangMartinez’s statement of a claingeeFed.
R. Civ. P. 15(d). The Court further noteattheferences to settlement negotiations
utterly inappropriate and inadmissible asdewce of liability under Federal Rule (
Evidence 408. The Court is unable disoeiat it is Martinez wants, and thus canr]
grant Martinez’s request.
In light of the discussion above, tl®urt instead construes Martinez’s Moti(

as an opposition to Navy League’s Motion@emiss. The caption to her Motign

reads “L.R. 7-9 Opposing Papers.” Also, the filing makes multiple references to
League’s Motion to Dismiss. Although Mamez’'s Motion did not address any of t
merits of Navy League’s argumis, it seemed at times to be attacking the proced

validity of Navy League’s Motion to disiss. Therefore, the Court finds that

Martinez intended her noticed Motion to @alfly be an oppositioto Navy League’s
Motion to Dismiss. In so far as an adtmaticed motion has been filed, the Col
DENIES that Motion. With this in mind, the Counhow turns to the substance
Navy League’s Motion to Dismiss.
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B. Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss

Navy League moves to disss on two grounds. First, Navy League argues
Martinez's FAC should be dismissed underleRdil(b) for failureto comply with a
court order. Second, Navy ague contends that the FAC fails to state a claim
should be dismissed und@ule 12(b)(6).

1. Rule 41(b): Failure to Comply With Court Order

Navy League first argues that MartineZAC should be dismissed under Rt
41(b) because she failed ¢orrect the deficiencies idgefied in Navy League’s prior

Motion to Dismiss, as ordered by this Cowd she failed to timely file her FAC.

(Def.’s Mot. 10.) As discussed belowetourt finds these arguments unavailing.

A defendant may move to dismiss an actorany claim against, if a plaintiff
fails to comply with a court dier. Fed. R. CivP. 41(b). Howewe dismissal on thes
grounds rests in theoart’'s sound discretionLink v. Wabash R.R. G370 US 626,
633 (1962). In addition, courts are strongly inclined to reach decisions on the 1
Yourish v. California Amplifierl91 F.3d 983, 990 (9th Cir. 1999).

Martinez's failure to correct the deficiencies identified in Navy Leagl

original Motion to Dismiss does not warratismissal. On Sepimber 19, 2013, this

Court granted Navy Leagueldotion to Dismiss the original Complaint with 14 da
leave to amend. (ECF No. 11.) Theut warned that ‘&filing the original
Complaint without addressing the deficigs raised in Navy League’s Motion

Dismiss may result in dismissal of this casé&d” at 3. Although the Court alluded {
the deficiencies in her origiah Complaint, those issues mgenot specifically addresse
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by the Court, and the ultimateogmds for dismissal were procedural, in that she fajled

to oppose Navy League’s Motion to Dismigsbsent an express order from the Co
regarding the particular defects in Maez's Complaint, dismissal under th
argument is unwarranted.

Additionally, Martinez’s timely submission of her FAC is not at issue,
cannot serve as grounds for dismissal uriderinstant Motion. Under the Court
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Order, Martinez was required fite an FAC no later than October 3, 2013. (ECF |
11.) As discussed above, rather thatending to file an amended complair
Martinez tried to file what she called“Request to Review Rast Complaint” and

attached to that request her FAC. (BUO#s. 16, 17.) Yet thdocket reflects her FAQ

was filed on time, notwithstanding Martinezintention to merely submit a draf
(ECF No. 16.) The Coudonsiders the FAC timely.

While Martinez’s original Complatnwas dismissed on procedural groun
the Court this time around choosesé¢ach the merits of Martinez’'s FACYourish
191 F.3d at 990. The Court thus firdilsmissal under 41(b) unfitting.

2. Rule 12(b)(6): Failure to State a Claim

Navy League’s second ground for dissal is more availing. Navy Leagt
next argues that the Court should disnhsatinez’'s FAC because it fails to state
claim for relief. (Def.’s Motl2.) In her FAC, Martinez reffe generally to her “caus
of action” as a “personal injury” clairand the facts alleged in her FAC could
construed as an attemptptead a general negligence ai(FAC T 48.) She furthe
cites violation of section 333 of the California Governmé Code as her basis ¢
Navy League’s duty under whhtoks to be negligengeer se Id at2. As grounds
for dismissal under Rule 12(b)(6) Navy lgeee contends that (1) section 39933
inapposite in the instant case, and (2)rtviez fails to sufficiently plead geners:
negligence in her FAC. (Def.’s Mot. 134.)

Under California law, where a negligenaetion is predicated on a defendar
violation of a statute, plaintiffs may leantitled to the benefit of the negligenoer se
doctrine in establishing their primacia case. Cal. Evid. Code § 669(&yiroz v.
Seventh Ave. Cir45 Cal. Rptr. 3d 222, 244 (Cal. G¢pp. 2006). This evidentiary
doctrine presumes defendant's duty and bremuth,the only issue left for plaintiff t
prove is whether the violatiqoroximately caused the injuryd.

Here, Martinez predicates her negligerclaim on a violation of section 3993
titled “Public Access to Navigable Waters, Water Fronts, And Streets.” Martil
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reliance on this statute is misplacedectton 39933 addressesthublic trust doctrine
in California, essentially the state’s powercontrol, regulate and utilize its navigah
waterways and the lands lying beneath themers. Watercraft Coal. v. Bd. ¢
Supervisors122 Cal. Rptr. 2d 425, 437 (Cal. @ipp. 2002). Martinez’s claim ha

no relation to the public trust doctrineycathe Court finds no authority for section

39933's appropriate application under #esrcumstances. Meover, Martinez’s
FAC does not provide th@ourt with any suppofrt-and the Court finds norefor the
assertion that Martinez’'s alleged injumas of a “nature which [section 39933] w
designed to prevent.” Cal. Evid. Code689(a)(3). Accordigly, section 39933
cannot avail Martinez of thbenefit of the negligengeer sedoctrine.

As stated above, the facts alleged inrfiteez’s FAC could also be construed

an attempt to plead a genenagligence claim. (FAC  16.The first element of any
negligence claim is the existee of a duty, and where thaseno duty, there can be no

negligence. Toomer v. U.$.615 F.3d 1233, 1236 (9th CR010). Furthermore, th
existence of a duty of care is a separaedadrom the question of whether a defend

breached that duty of car&Kockelman v. Sega¥Vl Cal. Rptr. 2d 552, 556 (Cal. Gt.
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App. 1998). Here, Martinemerely pleads that she was injured at a Navy Ledgue

sponsored event, and as such Navy League owed her a duty, yet she prov
further facts to support that claim. Magmnfails to assert that Navy League was

owner of the premises, or that it waspgaossession of the préses where she was

injured. Cody F. v. Falletti112 Cal. Rptr. 2d 593, 601 (C&lt. App. 2001). She als
fails to allege that Navy League had reason to anticipp@tgprobability of an injury,
or that it had an opportunity to prevehe injury or warn of the perilld. Not only

ides
the

D

has Martinez failed to establish a duty owed to her by Navy League, she fails tg ple:

facts relevant to whether any breach afrsa duty constitutes actionable negligen

Id. In other words, Martinez has failed to pleadw Navy League failed to act

reasonably. Legal labels andnclusions, or formulaic reais of the elements of
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cause of action do not sufé when stating a claim.lgbal, 556 U.S. at 678
Therefore, the FAC fails to stat claim under Rule 12(b)(6).
Accordingly, the CourGRANTS Navy League’s Motion to Dismiss.
V. CONCLUSION

For the above reasonsgetlourt construes MartinezMotion as her oppositiory,

and in so far as an actual noticedtion has been filed, the CoUDENIES that
Motion. (ECF No. 26.) Also, the CoUBRANTS Navy League’s Motion to Dismis
with LEAVE TO AMEND . (ECF No. 24.) Martinemay file a Second Amende
Complaint within 14 days of this ordelHowever, she is warned that filing anoth
Complaint without addressing the deficieexiraised in this Order will result i
dismissal of this caseith prejudice

IT IS SO ORDERED.

November 25, 2013
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OTIS D. WRIGHT, i
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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